
The Societas Trust

Contents of the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

Page

Reference and Administrative Details 1

Report of the Trustees 2 to 20

Governance Statement 21 to 24

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance 25

Statement of Trustees Responsibilities 26

Report of the Independent Auditors 27 to 28

Independent Accountant's Report on Regularity 29

Statement of Financial Activities 30

Balance Sheet 31

Cash Flow Statement 32

Notes to the Financial Statements 33 to 52



The Societas Trust

Reference and Administrative Details

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

Members Mr G Easdown (resigned 31st December 2018)

Mr W Griffin (resigned 4th July 2019)

Mr R Knight (appointed 4th July 2019)

Mr R Palin

Mr G Weir

Trustees (Directors) Mrs C Bartley 

Mrs A Bradshaw (appointed 11th October 2018)

Mrs C Dudson

Mrs R Foster (resigned 1st September 2018)

Mrs J Fury (resigned 31st December 2018)

Mrs N Gibson (resigned 1st September 2018)

Mr W Griffin (resigned 4th July 2019)

Mrs G Jenkins

Mr R Knight (appointed 7th September 2018 & resigned 4th July 2019)

Mr J Lovatt

Mr R Machin (appointed 1st September 2018)

Mr S Martin (resigned 1st September 2018)

Mr G Weir 

Senior Management Team Mr J Lovatt               CEO and Accounting Officer

Mrs R Foster          Head of Ash Green Primary Academy

Mrs N Gibson          Head of Ellison Primary Academy

Mr S Martin               Head of Goldenhill Primary Academy

Mrs E Preston Head of Gladstone Primary Academy

Mr R Shenton Head of Summerbank Primary Academy

Registered Office The Societas Trust

The Hub Office

Ellison Primary Academy

Ellison Street

Wolstanton

Newcastle under Lyme

ST5 0BL

Company Registration

Number 09987031 (England and Wales)

Auditors Hardings

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor

6 Marsh Parade

Newcastle-under-Lyme

Staffordshire

ST5 1DU

Bankers Lloyds Bank PLC

Solicitors SAS Daniels LLP

Page 1



The Societas Trust

Report of the Trustees

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

The trustees of The Societas Trust (the Trust) present their annual report together with the audited financial  statements

for the period from 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019. The annual report serves the purposes of both a  trustees'

report, and a directors' report including a strategic report under company law.

The Trust was incorporated on 4th February 2016 and operates as a multi academy trust (MAT) for pupils aged 3 -  11.

At 31 August 2019, there were five academies within the Trust with a combined capacity of 2,092 and a roll of  1,991

(including Nursery children) at the end of the Academic Year 2019.   The academies (settings) were:

- Ash Green Primary Academy 

- Ellison Primary Academy

- Gladstone Primary Academy

- Goldenhill Primary Academy

- Summerbank Primary Academy

For the purpose of this report, the terms trustee and director are interchangeable. 

Objectives and activities

Objects, Vision and aims

The Objects of the Trust are as follows:

- To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the

generality of the foregoing, by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools

offering a broad and balanced curriculum ("the mainstream Academies");

- To promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas in which the Academies are situated the provision of

facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such facilities by

reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social economic circumstances or

for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the object of improving of life of the said

inhabitants.

The vision of the Trust is to create a sustainable, professional community where all learners are valued and  encouraged

to achieve their potential, and all individuals are respected.

Our maxim is - Great Learning Opportunities for all!

The Trust's aims are:-

- To improve educational standards for all children;

- To achieve operational efficiencies through economies of scale;

- To increase flexibility of human resources;

- To improve potential for the retention of staff;

- To increase opportunity for continuing professional development;

- To establish succession planning programmes for all leaders;

- To provide peer to peer support and challenge;

- To enhance sustainability to maintain the pace of school improvement;

- To strengthen relationships between diverse communities; 

- To further embed a celebration of diversity and mutual respect.
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The Societas Trust

Report of the Trustees

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

Objectives and activities

Objectives, Actions and Outcomes

The Trust's main objectives for the period from 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019, linked to the Trust's  Strategic

Development Plan, are outlined below, as is the progress towards the agreed milestones to measure success:

1. Ensure that each setting uses Philosophy for Children (P4C) to create a community of enquiry that  improves

pupils' questioning and reasoning skills; their search for alternative perspectives and connections;  critical

thinking (so that they are open to changing viewpoints); and outcomes in reading, maths and writing. By  summer

2020 all settings will meet the SAPERE Bronze criteria, by summer 2021 most settings will meet Silver  criteria;

by 2022 some settings meet Gold criteria. The Trust Board's P4C Steering Group meets termly to direct  and

monitor progress towards meeting these objectives.

Outcomes

All settings made good progress towards the Bronze Standard, with two receiving the award this academic  year;

remaining settings are on track to achieve the Bronze Standard by July 2020.

Actions that have taken place are outlined below:

- All settings appointed two P4C leaders to create individual action plans and to drive the project in their

individual settings;

- P4C leaders in all settings meet regularly to share good practice across the Trust and model good practice

across their settings to support other teachers;

- All class teachers have completed Level 1 SAPERE training;

- In at least half of the classes in each setting: 

- children are familiar with the 10 step philosophical enquiry model;

- children can ask open questions, moving towards philosophical questions;

- children are beginning to collaborate to help make sense of ideas from other people;

- children review the class enquiry and their own participation against simple educational and behavioural

criteria;

- class teachers have facilitated a minimum of 6 enquiries over the term;

- class teachers ask open procedural (Socratic) questions;

- class teachers identify connections and distinctions, reasons and examples, for children in P4C sessions,

and support children to recognise them;

- class teachers record evidence of using a range of starting points for enquiry;

- class teachers review and reflect upon their P4C sessions in order to inform planning of future sessions. 

- Progress has been quality assured in five out of six settings by the P4C Consultant/Trainer;

- Baseline reading data, using the Salford Reading Test, has been collated; this will allow quantative and

qualitative analysis of reading progress in the next twelve months;

- Qualitative measures of impact have been agreed to assess progress in the 4 Cs (Caring, Collaborative, Critical,

Creative) of thinking skills;

- Lead teachers across the Trust received further training from the P4C trainer to further embed their knowledge

and understanding to affect further progress towards agreed outcomes.
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The Societas Trust

Report of the Trustees

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

Objectives and activities

Objectives, Actions and Outcomes

2. All settings to participate fully in the Sandwell Wellbeing project that aims to support and improve the  mental

health and emotional wellbeing of all stakeholders by developing teaching and learning practices that  promote

resilience, support social and emotional learning, and cultivate a love of learning among the whole  school

community: all settings to achieve the charter mark by summer 2022. The Trust Board's Inclusion and  Wellbeing

Steering Group meets termly to direct and monitor progress towards achieving these objectives.

Outcomes

Settings are participating fully in the project and are on track to achieve the charter mark by summer 2022.

Actions that have taken place include:

- All settings engaged in the action research model and have conducted an audit of existing Emotional Health

and Wellbeing provision involving all staff, and children in Key Stages 1 and 2 (using the wellbeing screening

tool that looks at four areas of wellbeing: social, emotional, pro-social behaviours and feelings toward school,

as defined by Public Health England), supported by local Educational Psychologists;

- Three of the settings have analysed the results of the audit and are using these outcomes to inform action

planning; the other settings are due to complete this activity in the next academic year;

- Outcomes of the audits have been shared more widely with staff, trustees and governors;

- Focus groups of parents and children have been invited to contribute to the process, in three of the settings so

far, with plans to ensure that this work informs the action plans in all settings. 

- Staff wellbeing groups are being created in two settings with similar groups to be established in other settings;

- The next steps for all settings are to continue to introduce the Sandwell wellbeing curriculum "Healthy Mind,

Happy Me" in classes, using developmentally appropriate lesson plans and starter assemblies.

3. Extend the Capacity (skills and ability) of all staff and governors so that by summer 2022: staff have  the

expertise and the ambition necessary to fulfil their role; leaders at all levels can monitor, evaluate, diagnose  and

improve the areas for which they are responsible; can lead by example; and can manage and deploy  resources

effectively. This is to be achieved, among several other initiatives, through participating in  peer-to-peer,

coaching and mentoring, and collaborative training. The Trust Board's Developing a Professional  Community

Steering Group meets termly to direct and monitor progress to achieving these objectives.

Outcomes

Good progress has been made towards this objective and we are on track to achieve the desired outcomes.

Actions that have taken place include:

- All settings having completed an audit that has given the Trust a clear picture of the qualifications, expertise

and aspirations of all staff.  The audits are being used to inform CPD provision and opportunities across the

Trust and in individual academies;

- The Trust has developed a range of career pathways to guide and support the aspiration of all staff and provide

opportunities within each setting and across the trust;

- The Trust Board is on track to ensure that each LGB effectively challenges and holds leadership to account for

the performance of each academy; this is evidenced in the minutes of meetings and reviewed as part of the

Academy Performance Review (APR) cycle; 

- Academy Performance Reviews this academic year evidence that all academies are deemed 'effective' in

relation to Leadership & Management with the aim that all are deemed 'highly effective' by July 2022;

- Coaching and mentoring is being used effectively, by senior leaders across the Trust, as part of a Peer to Peer

process that challenges peers and helps to raise the overall quality of provision;

- Next step is to extend the Peer to Peer process to groups of leaders at all levels.
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Objectives and activities

Objectives, Actions and Outcomes

4. Ensure that each setting has a rich, inspiring and highly stimulating curriculum, including  extracurricular

provision that fully meets the needs of all pupils and leaves them with highly memorable and  influential

experiences, and overcomes some of the barriers to cementing a broader community and a  corporate

understanding. This is to be achieved, in part, through Trust wide annual cultural capital projects  including

Shakespeare and drama, Music, Sport and Art Projects. The Trust Board's Curriculum Entitlement  Steering

Group meets termly to direct and monitor progress towards achieving these objectives. The work of the  Really

Useful Generation Students' Group (RUGS) also supports this endeavour.

Outcomes

Good progress has been made towards this objective and we are on track to achieve the desired outcomes.

Actions that have taken place include:

- The Trust has devised an agreed set of curriculum aims building upon the vision and values of the Trust and of

individual settings;

- All settings have considered and used academy freedoms to adapt their individual curriculums to meet the

needs of the communities they serve;

- Each setting has explored and clarified a clear intent, implementation and impact within their curriculum design

models;

- Key leaders (defined by Executive) have engaged in joint CPD in a number of areas; 

- Pupil voice through RUGS has developed a set of 'values for learning' for the Trust;

- Peer to Peer processes have been implemented to empower senior leaders to affirm good practice/ make

considered change in individual academy/school curriculums;

- Research is informing practice across the Trust and action research is impacting on identified areas for

curriculum development and pedagogy in individual settings;

- Trust projects enhance the cultural capital of children across the Trust and also enable children from very

different communities to collaborate.  Current projects include: Shakespeare; Young Voices; Ceramics;

Olympics;

- A Trust wide conference for all staff, either engaged in supporting children's Teaching and Learning and / or

emotional welfare, on oracy and metacognition is planned for January 2020 at Keele University, with

Cambridge Professor Neil Mercer as the keynote speaker. 

5. To grow the Trust through a process of 'growth through collaboration' with other 'like-minded' leaders  and

organisations, in order to serve a pupil population (excluding nursery children) of no less than 3,000 pupils  by

the summer of 2022. The Executive Board directs and monitors progress towards achieving this objective.

Outcomes

Good progress has been made towards this objective and the Trust has already grown in collaboration with a  maintained

nursery school. Continued collaborative opportunities are being explored to ensure that the Trust is on track to  achieve

the desired outcomes.

Actions that have taken place include:

- The Trust entering into collaboration with a maintained, stand-alone nursery (National Support) school

resulting in a collaboration agreement;

- The Trust is continuing to engage collaboratively with other 'likeminded' leaders and organisations to create

purposeful and impactful partnerships that lead to improvements in children's outcomes and effective use of

resources - the plan includes the option of settings working in greater alignment or joining the Trust by July

2022;

- Collaborations are in place focusing on projects of mutual value to ensure each organisation's strategic vision is

strengthened and the needs of the communities they each serve are met;

- A shared strategic vision and plan is in place, which has been developed in partnership with all key Trust

stakeholders, and is based on mutual values, ethos and the needs of the communities each setting serves;

- Key statutory policies and procedures (GDPR, HR, Finance etc.) have been harmonised across the Trust and

are being shared with other like-minded organisations;

- Due diligence processes have been drawn up and will be implemented as appropriate;
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Objectives and activities

Objectives, Actions and Outcomes

- Next steps include a review of Trust vision and values exercise involving all key stakeholders and development

of a growth plan.

Public benefit

The Trust provides educational services to all children in the local areas served by its academies and offers facilities to  a

variety of local community groups outside the normal school hours. The Trust's Academies also offer a wide range  of

family and adult learning opportunities and the facilities are frequently used by external agencies. The Trust  fully

complies with all statutory guidance. 
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Strategic report

Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

The Societas Trust is unique, it was originally founded as the result of the voluntary collaboration between the  head

teachers and governing boards of 'like-minded' primary settings who shared a belief that the needs of children are  best

met when schools and teachers collaborate and cooperate and are able to maintain close links with the communities  they

serve.

Whilst it is crucial for us to support the development of the unique identity of each setting in the partnership, we  also

believe that by developing and promoting innovative and creative approaches to learning and teaching across the  Trust,

we will ensure that our children have the very best opportunities to excel academically and develop socially.

We believe that children learn best and thrive in environments that promote and foster self-belief, the love of  learning

and high expectations of themselves and others.

The academies (settings) that now comprise The Societas Trust are:-

- Ash Green Primary Academy - joined on 1st December 2017;

- Ellison Primary Academy - joined on 1st October 2016;

- Gladstone Primary Academy - joined on 1st September 2017;

- Goldenhill Primary Academy - joined on 1st June 2017;

- Summerbank Primary Academy - joined on 1st September 2017.

We also have an associate member setting, Oaklands Nursery School, which entered into a collaboration agreement  with

the Trust on 4 July 2019.

The Trust's achievements and performance, in addition to the outcomes outlined above, during the period from  1st

September 2018 to 31st August 2019 are as follows (lists are not exhaustive):-

For Teaching and Learning:-

- The termly Academy Performance Review (APR) has been embedded within the culture and more closely

aligned to the Ofsted framework;

- The Annual Performance Review (APR) and external teaching and learning review processes continue to

ensure quality assurance of teaching and learning judgements;

- Pupil outcomes for combined reading, writing and maths at Key Stage 1 and 2 continue to improve year on

year;

- Staff from Nursery to Year 6 have had continued opportunities to share assessment and other practices

supported by experts in their field;

- Judgements in reading, writing and maths have been standardised and moderated to ensure consistency and

accuracy of judgement; this work is supported by trained external moderators;

- A Nursery and Reception Baseline has been consistently implemented; 

- Standards and expectations in reading, writing and maths for all year groups have been agreed and moderated;

- A method of tracking progress and attainment across all academies is in operation;

- Home School Link Workers / Learning Mentors / SENCOs and other groups continue to share good practice in

how to best support our most vulnerable pupils; 

- A framework has continued to ensure a consistent entitlement for pupils with Special Educational Needs and

Disabilities in Societas settings;

- Subject and other leaders have had opportunity to share best practice, work together on key priorities and

develop their leadership skills;

- Working closely with colleagues from Worcester University, senior leaders have continued to explore how best

to develop and implement Peer to Peer support to enhance leadership at all levels, including pupils.
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Strategic report

Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

For Professional Development:-

- The Annual Performance Review (APR) process continues to ensure quality assurance of each settings

self-evaluation which is externally moderated;

- Leaders continue to  engage in continued professional development including the NPQEL, NPQSL and

NPQML programmes;

- The collaboration agreement with Oaklands has resulted in a National Support School and NLE adding

capacity to the Trust;

- The NLE leads CPD for early years across the Trust and also works with our voluntary sector nursery partners;

- The Trust continues to engage in joint CPD to develop the next generation of teachers and support staff to

serve our communities and beyond;

- The Trust continues to be a hub for Initial Teacher Education working closely with the local SCITT (KNSTE);

- The Trust has established a partnership with an independent CPD partner (Southstar);

- A number of working groups and networks to share best practice continue to meet regularly; areas of priority

include Phonics, Science, SEND, Art, PE and Home School Link Workers/Learning Mentors;

- The work of leaders is complemented by bringing in experts and other key strategic partners (including the

Keele and North Staffordshire Teacher Education (KNSTE); Worcester University; Blackfriars TSA;

SAPARE; Local Research School);

- Each academy continues to have a Lead Teacher Educator acting as a beacon and disseminator of best practice,

to support aspiring, newly and recently qualified teachers;

- The Trust's Developing a Professional Community (DPC) Steering Group continues to meet and develop policy

and CPD plans to support staff development at all levels;

- A member of the Executive Board sits on the strategic board of the local SCITT (KNSTE);

- A member of the Executive Board sits on the strategic board of a local teaching school (Blackfriars TSA);

- An induction policy and programme for Newly and Recently Qualified Teachers is being consistently

implemented; 

- Newly and Recently Qualified Teachers are also supported through a network led by Lead Teacher Educators

from across the Trust;

- The Chairs' and Vice Chairs' Group, led by the CEO, continues to engage in joint meetings to build further

expertise and capacity and to plan joint training opportunities.

For Curriculum Enrichment and Cultural Capital:-

- The MAT Student Council, the Really Useful Generation Students Group (RUGS), whose job it is to "inspire

and develop exciting strategies for high quality learning across the MAT", continues to meet with the support

of the CEO and Executive Board; 

- Opportunities for children from across the Trust to collaborate and work together continue: e.g. the

Shakespeare Project, the Ceramics Project; Young Voices, It's the Knock Out etc.; 

- KS2 Children from across the Trust were involved in a professional performance of their version of

Shakespeare's The Tempest at the New Vic Theatre;

- KS2 Children from across the Trust were involved in the Young Voices concert at the Manchester Arena;

- KS1 Children from across the Trust took part in an 'It's the Knock Out' sports event also supported by staff

from Port Vale Football Club.

Key Academic Performance Indicators

The Trust scrutinises the educational performance of its academies on a termly basis through the Academy  Performance

Review (APR) cycle, which forms part of the Trust's overarching Improving Education Strategy - a copy of which  can

be found under 'Key Information' on the Trust's website.
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Strategic report

Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

Standards Achieved in Key Stages 1 and 2

Below are the (invalidated) 2019 results for Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 for individual academies that joined the

Trust before 31st August 2019 and for the Trust as a whole (comparable results for 2018 are in brackets; 

results for 2019 highlighted in grey/bold indicates they are either above or in-line with National and / or

represent an upward trend):

(Age Related Expected (ARE) is the appropriate term for a pupil meeting the required year group/end of key  stage

standard.)

ASH GREEN PRIMARY ACADEMY

Academy National

Key Stage 1

88% (87%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     75% Year 2 ARE and above

88% (82%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 69% Year 2 ARE and above

88% (87%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 76% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

81% Year 2 ARE and above 65% Year 2 ARE and above

Greater Depth

40% (35%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     25% Year 2 ARE and above

33% (23%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 15% Year 2 ARE and above

40% (35%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 22% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

30% Year 2 ARE and above 11% Year 2 ARE and above

Key Stage 2

87% (98%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 73% Year 6 ARE and above

94% (93%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 78% Year 6 ARE and above

96% (90%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 79% Year 6 ARE and above

89% (95%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 78% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

85% (90%) Year 6 ARE and above 65% Year 6 ARE and above

Greater Depth

35% (40%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 27% Year 6 ARE and above

35% (33%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 20% Year 6 ARE and above

41% (40%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 27% Year 6 ARE and above

28% (38%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 36% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

20% Year 6 ARE and above 11% Year 6 ARE and above
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Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

ELLISON PRIMARY ACADEMY

Academy National

Key Stage 1

78% (87%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     75% Year 2 ARE and above

81% (85%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 69% Year 2 ARE and above

84% (85%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 76% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

64% Year 2 ARE and above 65% Year 2 ARE and above

Greater Depth

Academy National

23% (33%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     25% Year 2 ARE and above

20% (18%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 15% Year 2 ARE and above

18% (21%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 22% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

5% Year 2 ARE and above 11% Year 2 ARE and above

Key Stage 2

89% (88%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 73% Year 6 ARE and above

85% (88%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 78% Year 6 ARE and above

91% (90%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 79% Year 6 ARE and above

87% (90%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 78% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

78% (83%) Year 6 ARE and above 65% Year 6 ARE and above

Greater Depth

22% (34%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 27% Year 6 ARE and above

22% (24%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 20% Year 6 ARE and above

31% (15%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 27% Year 6 ARE and above

31% (46%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 36% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

13% Year 6 ARE and above 11% Year 6 ARE and above
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Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

GLADSTONE PRIMARY ACADEMY

Academy National

Key Stage 1

78% (60%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     75% Year 2 ARE and above

60% (50%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 69% Year 2 ARE and above

72% (62%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 76% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

59% Year 2 ARE and above 65% Year 2 ARE and above

Greater Depth

22% (18%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     25% Year 2 ARE and above

19% (15%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 15% Year 2 ARE and above

21% (22%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 22% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

9% Year 2 ARE and above 11% Year 2 ARE and above

Key Stage 2

70% (73%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 73% Year 6 ARE and above

77% (65%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 78% Year 6 ARE and above

73% (61%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 79% Year 6 ARE and above

75% (73%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 78% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

58% (55%) Year 6 ARE and above 65% Year 6 ARE and above

Greater Depth

17% (21%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 27% Year 6 ARE and above

8%  (7%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 20% Year 6 ARE and above

13%  (13%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 27% Year 6 ARE and above

25% (27%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 36% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

6% Year 6 ARE and above 11% Year 6 ARE and above
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Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

GOLDENHILL PRIMARY ACADEMY

Academy National

Key Stage 1

72% (65%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     75% Year 2 ARE and above

72% (58%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 69% Year 2 ARE and above

76% (61%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 76% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

72% Year 2 ARE and above 65% Year 2 ARE and above

Greater Depth

24% (35%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     25% Year 2 ARE and above

24% (26%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 15% Year 2 ARE and above

21% (29%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 22% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

21% Year 2 ARE and above 11% Year 2 ARE and above

Key Stage 2

90% (93%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 73% Year 6 ARE and above

87% (83%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 78% Year 6 ARE and above

93% (93%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 79% Year 6 ARE and above

90% (93%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 78% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

83% (83%) Year 6 ARE and above 65% Year 6 ARE and above

Greater Depth

20% (20%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 27% Year 6 ARE and above

27% (17%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 20% Year 6 ARE and above

10%  (17%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 27% Year 6 ARE and above

20% (37%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 36% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

3% Year 6 ARE and above 11% Year 6 ARE and above
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Strategic report

Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

SUMMERBANK PRIMARY ACADEMY

Academy National

Key Stage 1

67% (65%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     75% Year 2 ARE and above

65% (60%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 69% Year 2 ARE and above

72% (65%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 76% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

62% Year 2 ARE and above 65% Year 2 ARE and above

Greater Depth

18% (18%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     25% Year 2 ARE and above

13% (13%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 15% Year 2 ARE and above

17% (17%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 22% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

Academy National

8% Year 2 ARE and above 11% Year 2 ARE and above

Key Stage 2

73% (75%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 73% Year 6 ARE and above

69% (73%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 78% Year 6 ARE and above

80% (78%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 79% Year 6 ARE and above

71% (71%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 78% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

64% (90%) Year 6 ARE and above 65% Year 6 ARE and above

Greater Depth

38% (22%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 27% Year 6 ARE and above

5%    (22%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 20% Year 6 ARE and above

31% (31%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 27% Year 6 ARE and above

31% (34%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 36% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

5% Year 6 ARE and above 11% Year 6 ARE and above
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Achievement and performance

Charitable activities

TRUST AS A WHOLE

Academy National

Key Stage 1

77% (73%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     75% Year 2 ARE and above

73% (67%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 69% Year 2 ARE and above

78% (72%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 76% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

68% Year 2 ARE and above 65% Year 2 ARE and above

Greater Depth

25% (28%) Year 2 ARE and above Reading     25% Year 2 ARE and above

22% (19%) Year 2 ARE and above Writing 15% Year 2 ARE and above

23% (25%) Year 2 ARE and above Maths 22% Year 2 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

15% Year 2 ARE and above 11% Year 2 ARE and above

Key Stage 2

82% (85%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 73% Year 6 ARE and above

82% (82%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 78% Year 6 ARE and above

87% (82%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 79% Year 6 ARE and above

82% (84%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 78% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Reading Writing and Maths

72% (76%) Year 6 ARE and above 65% Year 6 ARE and above

Greater Depth

26% (27%) Year 6 ARE and above Reading 27% Year 6 ARE and above

19% (21%) Year 6 ARE and above Writing 20% Year 6 ARE and above

25% (23%) Year 6 ARE and above Maths 27% Year 6 ARE and above

27% (36%) Year 6 ARE and above SPAG 36% Year 6 ARE and above

Combined Greater Depth Reading Writing and Maths

9% Year 6 ARE and above 11% Year 6 ARE and above
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Achievement and performance

Key financial performance indicators

The Trust scrutinises the financial performance of its academies through regular meetings between the CEO, CFO  and

academy senior leaders; the CEO reports any issues to governors / trustees; internal controls are also rigorously  tested

through the Internal Audit Process, which forms part of the Trust's Finance Policy and Procedures - a copy of which  can

be found under 'Key Information' on the Trust's website. 

Financial review

Financial position

The Trust's accounting year is from 1st September to 31st August in any year.

Most of the Trust's income is derived from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted  to

particular purposes. The grants received during the year to 31st August 2019, and associated expenditure, are shown  as

restricted funds in the statement of financial activities.

All expenditure of the Trust is made in line with the Trust's Financial Policy and Procedures Manual which supports  the

provision of Education of all the pupils on roll.

During the year ended 31st August 2019, total incoming resources amounted to £10,014,807. This income  was

received from the ESFA and local authority in connection with the educational operations of the Trust along with  other

funds generated by the Trust.  Notes 2-5 show a detailed breakdown of the incoming resources.

Resources expended for the period totalled £10,779,389 which included a £448,000 cost attributed to the  LGPS

(included in governance costs within note 7) along with depreciation on tangible fixed assets of £647,532. There was  an

actuarial loss on the LGPS of £1,598,000.

In terms of the day to day operation of the Trust and excluding the non-monetary costs mentioned above in  connection

with depreciation and the LGPS movements, there was a closing carry forward surplus of £120,974 at 31st August  2019,

excluding the deficit balance from the Ash Green conversion in 2017/18.

A full breakdown of the balances can be seen at note 19 along with explanation of the deficit recovery plan. 

Investment policy and objectives

Investments must be made only in accordance with written procedures approved by the Trust Board under the  Trust's

separate Investment Policy contained within the Trust's Finance Policy and Procedures Manual, which is  reviewed

annually. 

Reserves policy

The Budget is managed in line with the Trust's Reserves Policy which is contained within the Trust's Finance Policy  and

Procedures Manual, and is reviewed annually. The review considers all income and expenditure and any  future

commitments. 

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources  to

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason the Trust Board continues to adopt the  going

concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis  can

be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements.

Page 15



The Societas Trust

Report of the Trustees

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

Strategic report

Principal risks and uncertainties

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than eliminate it. Actions  to

mitigate the risk have been planned for.  Principal risks and uncertainties as noted by the trustees are:-

- Change in government funding regime;

- Pupil numbers in decline resulting in loss of revenue - this could be caused by pupils failing to make good

progress, an unsatisfactory Ofsted report and loss of reputation;

- Staffing issues such as loss of Senior Management, epidemic sickness or long term sickness rendering the

academy unable to function effectively and efficiently;

- Inappropriate or insufficient financial controls and systems;

- Fraudulent activity;

- Financial commitments made without adequate authorisation.

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

Risk is managed through sound financial practice stipulated in the Trust's Finance Policy and Procedures Manual  and

Risk Management Policy. The Trust and each academy also operate a scheme of financial delegation and there  are

regular reviews, through an annual internal audit process (Including Peer Review), to ensure that Trust and  ESFA

financial policy and procedures are correctly adhered to. The CEO and CFO have operational oversight of the  internal

audit process.

The Trust is committed to strengthening the efficacy of the finance function across the Trust and retaining expertise  in

each academy. Financial software and other data base systems have been installed across the Trust to  allow

collaborative working. Trust financial policy and procedures have been developed and adopted by each academy  to

improve internal auditing; also, with the advice from the Trust's external auditors, to obtain and sustain best  practice.

The CFO and Academy Business Managers also meet regularly to standardise processes and maximise economies  of

scale through combined procurement etc. Standardisation and sharing of best practice is also supported by the  peer

review process.

Fundraising

All fundraising taking place across the Trust conforms to all recognised standards as defined under the provisions of  the

Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016. 
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Future plans

The Societas Trust's Strategic Development Plan (SDP) is the responsibility of the CEO to develop, working  closely

with the Executive Board. The plan identifies the strategic developments that the Societas Trust will make during  the

next three years. It is a strategic statement of intent that guides our work and allows stakeholders to monitor  progress

towards reaching our objectives.

The plan has been written following consideration of:

- The current OFSTED framework for inspections for schools and outcomes from school self-evaluation and

the Annual Performance Review (APR) outcomes that have been externally quality assured;

- Local and national developments that we know will have an impact on our settings over the coming years.

The plan reflects the Trust's vision, ethos and values and has been created by the Executive Board and approved by  the

Trust Board. It represents the core of our drive to ensure high standards and should be viewed on the context of  the

overall strategy for development.

The Strategic Development Plan also informs individual academy plans and each setting also has an operational  plan

that demonstrates how it will implement the strategic statement and also additional elements and actions to address  local

need.

The CEO, working alongside the Executive Board, will monitor and evaluate impact through the Academy  Performance

Review (APR) process and report termly to the Education Committee and /or Trust Board.

To achieve continuous school improvement, the Trust has a commitment to training and professional development  which

supports staff at all levels. All Societas settings have a commitment to participate in a school led improvement  model

and work collaboratively with schools and academies within and beyond the MAT to share best practice and  accomplish

improvements through partnership working. The SDP will operate within the boundaries of sound  financial

management.

The developments over the next three years are to continue to raise standards for all pupils across the trust so  that

settings are judged 'highly effective' for provision and outcomes through the Trust's Academy Performance  Review

(APR) process by summer 2022. This is to be achieved by reaching the milestones as outlined under each of  the

following five priority areas in our Strategic Development Plan:

1. Ensure that each setting uses Philosophy for Children to create a community of enquiry that improves

pupils' questioning and reasoning skills; their search for alternative perspectives and connections; critical

thinking (so that they are open to changing viewpoints); and outcomes in reading, maths and writing. By

summer 2020 all settings will meet the SAPERE Bronze criteria, by summer 2021 most settings will meet

Silver criteria; by 2022 some settings meet Gold criteria;

2. Ensure that each setting uses Philosophy for Children to create a community of enquiry that improves

pupils' questioning and reasoning skills; their search for alternative perspectives and connections; critical

thinking (so that they are open to changing viewpoints); and outcomes in reading, maths and writing. By

summer 2020 all settings will meet the SAPERE Bronze criteria, by summer 2021 most settings will meet

Silver criteria; by 2022 some settings meet Gold criteria;

3. Extend the capacity (skills and ability) of all staff so that by summer 2022: all staff have the expertise and

the ambition necessary to fulfil their role; leaders at all levels can monitor, evaluate, diagnose and

improve the areas for which they are responsible; can lead by example; and can manage and deploy

resources effectively.  This is to be achieved, among several other initiatives, through participating in

peer-to-peer, coaching and mentoring, and collaborative training;

4. Ensure that each setting has a rich, inspiring and highly stimulating curriculum, including extracurricular

provision that fully meets the needs of all pupils and leaves them with highly memorable and influential

experiences, and overcomes some of the barriers to cementing a broader community and a corporate

understanding. This is to be achieved, in part, through the Shakespeare, Music, PE and Arts Projects and

the work of the Really Useful Generation Students' Group (RUGS);
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5. To grow the trust through a process of 'growth through collaboration' with other 'like-minded' leaders and

organisations, to serve a pupil population (excluding nursery children) of no less than 3,000 pupils by the

summer of 2022.

Progress in each of these priority areas will be closely monitored by the CEO, working alongside the Trust  Board's

Committees, Steering Groups and Executive Board. The Strategic Development Plan will continue to be evaluated  and

developed in line with the needs of each of our settings. 

Structure, governance and management

Charity constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's memorandum  and

articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.

The trustees of The Societas Trust are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company  law.

The Charitable Company is known as The Societas Trust. Details of the trustees who served throughout the year,  except

as noted, are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. 

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Trust in the event of it being  wound

up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required,  not

exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member. 

Trustees' Indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has purchased insurance to protect trustees and local  governors

from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on the Trust's business. The  insurance

provides cover up to £5,000,000 being the total amount payable during any one Period of Insurance. 

Recruitment and appointment of new trustees

The members of the Trust are responsible for the appointment of trustees to the Directors' Board (Trust Board). When  a

vacancy for a trustee occurs, nominations are sought from stakeholders and externally and recruitment is dependent  on

an individual's complimentary skillset. Currently, each academy is represented on the Trust Board by the Chair of  their

Local Governing Board who cannot also be a member of staff. The Trust Board is also responsible for the  appointment

of the Trust Appointed Governors on each academy's Local Governing Board (LGB). Candidates are nominated in  line

with the Academy's published Instrument of Government. Parent and Staff governors are either elected or appointed  in

line with the articles of association and scheme of delegation. 
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Organisational structure

Directors' Board (or Trust Board)

The organisational structure of the Trust consists of a Directors' Board (Trust Board) currently comprising the Chair  of

the Local Governing Board from each of the Trust's settings; 3 independent trustees; and the CEO. The Chair of  the

Trust Board is also a member of the charitable company. The CEO is also a trustee and sits on the Trust Board in  a

non-voting capacity. The Trust Board has two main committees, Education and Resources, and a number of  steering

groups linked to the Trust's Strategic Development Plan. An independent trustee chairs each of the main committees  and

steering groups. The Trust Board and / or its committees, and its steering groups meet at least once a term.  Decisions

delegated to the Trust Board, its committees and steering groups, and the academy Local Governing Boards are  defined

in the Trust's Scheme of Delegation, terms of reference and Finance Policy and Procedures Manual, which can be  found

under 'Key Information' on the Trust's website - www.societastrust.org.uk.

The Directors' Board governs the activities of the Trust and oversees the work of each academy's LGB. Specifically,  this

includes setting general policy; adopting an annual strategic plan and budget; and monitoring the Trust's  financial

performance and quality of educational provision, through a variety of scrutiny processes which are  externally

moderated. The structure consists of the main Board and two subcommittees: Resources (Including Audit, Pay  and

Personnel) and Education. The Directors are also ultimately responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust  ensuring

that its aims are met and its ethos maintained: they do this through the formation of steering groups to direct and  monitor

progress towards the Trust's strategic aims as defined in the Trust's Strategic Development Plan. The  Education

Committee also monitors quality of provision and educational outcomes through the Trust's Improving  Education

Strategy, which is reviewed annually.

Trust Leadership

The Central Management Team (CMT) of the Trust are the CEO (also Accounting Officer), the Executive  Education

Representative (also Deputy CEO), and the Compliance and Finance Manager (also Chief Finance Officer). They  lead

and manage the Trust alongside the Executive Board, implementing strategy and policy in conjunction with  the

Directors' Board and its committees generally. The Executive Board comprises the CMT, Head Teachers, and  Deputy

Head Teachers (by invitation of the CEO). The Executive Board advises and makes recommendations to the  Trust

Board and its committees on setting general policy and making major decisions about the direction of the  Trust.

Members of the Executive Board also sit on the Trust's steering groups. Head Teachers, as employees of the Trust,  also

lead and manage their respective academies and report to the CEO.

Local Governing Boards

The Articles of Association requires each academy to have a Local Governing Board (LGB), which is  empowered

through the Scheme of Delegation to oversee the work and outcomes of individual academies within the Trust.  These

LGBs comprise a mix of local people including staff, parents, and others appointed by the Trust for their skills  and

experience. They act as a critical support to the Head Teacher and the academy. A member of the Trust Board  (usually

the CEO) also sits on each LGB in an advisory capacity. The LGB is responsible for ensuring high standards  of

education and financial effectiveness; they review the overall impact of each academy within the community it  serves

and are responsible for ensuring the Trust's ethos and vision are upheld and Trust policies complied with.

Student Representatives (RUGS)

The MAT Student Council (the Really Useful Generation Students Group - RUGS) promotes student collaboration  and

"inspires and develops inspirational strategies for high quality learning across the MAT". Two children (usually a  boy

and a girl) are elected from each academy bi-annually, and they meet at least once a term. The RUGS also act  as

ambassadors for the Trust as a whole. The CEO and members of the Executive Board attend the RUGS Group. 

Induction and training of new trustees

All trustees and local governors are provided, on appointment, with relevant copies of policies, procedures,  minutes,

accounts, budgets, plans and any other document that will support them in carrying out their role. All Trust  level

policies and procedures are reviewed on an annual cycle by the Trust Board and can be found under 'Key  Information'

on the Trust's website - www.societastrust.org.uk. As part of their induction, new trustees and local governors are  also

invited to attend a bespoke 'effective governance' training course hosted by a local training provider. Governor  training

resources are also made available on the Trust's website under 'Key Information' - www.societastrust.org.uk. 
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Key management remuneration

Arrangements for setting the pay of the Trust's Key Management Personnel (CMT) is based upon  performance

management targets linked to pupil outcomes. Executive pay is also benchmarked against other Multi Academy  Trusts

of similar size and socio-demographic. 

Risk management

The trustees are responsible for the management of the risks faced by all the Trust's academies. Risks for each  academy

are identified and assessed in a Trust risk register. Actions taken and actions required to control these risks are  noted

throughout the year. The major risks to which the Trust is exposed have been reviewed and systems have  been

developed to monitor and control those risks to mitigate any impact that they may have in the future. 

Funds held as custodian for others

There are no funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others 

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

So far as the trustees are aware, there is no relevant information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act  2006)

of which the academy trust`s auditors are unaware, and each trustee has taken all the steps that they ought to have  taken

as a trustee in order to make them aware of any audit information and to establish that the academy trust`s auditors  are

aware of that information.

Auditors

The auditors,  Hardings, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

Report of the trustees, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the board of trustees, as the  company

directors, on 5th December 2019 and signed on the board's behalf by:

G Weir  - Trustee
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Scope of Responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Societas Trust (the Trust) has  an

effective and appropriate system of internal control, of financial controls and otherwise. However, such a system  is

designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide  only

reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The trustees have delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring  financial

controls conform within the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with  the

requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The Societas Trust and the  Secretary

of State for Education. The CEO is also responsible for reporting to the Trust Board any material weaknesses  or

breakdowns in internal control. 

Governance

The information of governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement  of

Trustees' Responsibilities.

The Trustees have set up two committees, Education and Resources, to assist the decision making of the Trust Board  by

enabling more detailed consideration to be given to all educational and financial matters within the scheme  of

delegation. The committee Terms of Reference are:-

Resources Committee:-

- To make recommendations to the Trust Board with regard to central services and budget;

- To oversee the scrutiny and risk management of the individual academy budgets;

- To oversee policy and procedure implementation at each academy with regard to staffing, safeguarding and

facilities;

- To recommend to the Trust Board the proportion of the overall academy budget to be delegated to individual

academies;

- To recommend the Pay Policy to the Trust Board;

- To enter into contracts up to the limits of delegation and within an agreed budget (set by Directors);

- To authorise payments within agreed financial limits;

Improving Education Strategy

- To evaluate the effectiveness of each academy to ensure a coherent and strategic approach to educational

improvement, ensuring that every child receives a good education;   

- To monitor and make judgements about standards and quality of provision;

- To identify any Societas academies that are potentially at risk;

- To provide bespoke and tailored support to ensure rapid improvement;

- To challenge and support the Head Teacher and Chair of the Local Governing Board; 

- To monitor and review the school improvement plan for each setting against measurable success criteria; 

- To evaluate progress being made by providers and to report termly to the Trust Board.

Education Committee:-

- To oversee the Improving Education Strategy;

- To oversee the implementation of the curriculum policies set by each academy;

- To approve the performance management policies and procedures as recommended by the Executive Board;

- To approve the staff code of conduct as recommended by the Executive Board; 

- To oversee the implementation of the admissions policy and the exclusion and reinstatement of pupils;

- To make recommendations to the Trust Board, on an annual basis, those policies which will be developed by the

Trust and mandatory for all Trust academies;

- To enter into contracts up to the limits of delegation and within an agreed budget (set by Directors);

- To authorise payments within agreed financial limits;

Improving Education Strategy

- To evaluate the effectiveness of each academy to ensure a coherent and strategic approach to educational

improvement, ensuring that every child receive a good education;  

- To hold schools to account regarding standards achieved;

- To monitor and make judgements about standards and quality of provision;

- To identify any Societas academies that are potentially at risk;

- To moderate school self-evaluation by coordinating the APR and External Health Checks using an external

provider(s) for all Trust academies; 

- To provide bespoke and tailored support to ensure rapid improvement;

- To challenge and support the Head Teacher and Chair of the Local Governing Board; 

- To monitor and review the school improvement plan for each school against measurable success criteria;

- To evaluate progress being made by providers and to report termly to the Trust Board.
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Attendance

The Trust Board has formally met 2 times from the 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019, and attendance was  as

follows:

Meetings Attended Out of a Possible

Mrs C Bartley 2 2

Mrs A Bradshaw (Appointed - 11.10.2018) 1 1

Mrs C Dudson 0 2

Mrs J Fury (Resigned 31.12.2018) 0 1

Mr W Griffin (Resigned 4.7.2019) 0 2

Mrs M Hughes (Appointed 4.7.2019) 1 1

Mrs G Jenkins 1 2

Mr R Knight (Appointed - 7.9.2018; Resigned - 4.7.2019) 0 2

Mr J Lovatt 2 2

Mr Roger Machin (Appointed - 1.9.2018) 2 2

Mr G Weir 2 2

The Trust Board's Resources Committee has formally met 2 times from the 1st September 2018 to 31st August  2019,

and attendance was as follows:

Meetings Attended Out of a Possible

Mrs C Bartley 2 2

Mrs A Bradshaw (Appointed - 11.10.2018) 1 1

Mrs C Dudson 2 2

Mrs G Jenkins 1 2

Mr J Lovatt 2 2

Mr R Machin 2 2

Mr G Weir 2 2

The Trust Board's Education Committee has formally met 2 times from the 1st September 2018 to 31st August  2019,

and attendance was as follows:

Meetings Attended Out of a Possible

Mrs C Bartley 2 2

Mrs J Fury (Resigned 31.12.2018) 0 1

Mr W Griffin (Resigned 4.7.2019)  1 2

Mr R Knight (Resigned 4.7.2019) 1 2

Mr J Lovatt 2 2

Mr R Machin 2 2

Mr G Weir 1 1

Review of Value for Money

As the Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use  of

public resources. The CEO understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal  outcomes

achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The CEO considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic  year,

and reports to the Trust Board where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data  where

available.

The CEO as Accounting Officer for the Trust, working alongside the CFO and Executive Board, has delivered  improved

value for money during the year by:-

- Improving educational standards across all academies within the Trust;

- Ensuring academy budgets are sustainable over the medium term;

- Maximising 'zero cost (£)' opportunities for professional development by sharing good practice across the

Trust;

- The CFO working closely with the Academy Business Managers also secures Trust wide procurement ensuring

economies of scale are fully exploited. 
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The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The Trust's system of internal control (Internal Audit Process) is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level  rather

than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve Trust policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only  provide

reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing  process

designed to identify and prioritise risks to achieving Trust and ESFA policies, aims and objectives; to evaluate  the

likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised; and to manage them  efficiently,

effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Societas Trust for the year  ended

31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Trust Board and the Executive Board have reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with  the

operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Trustees are of  the

view that there is a formal on-going process of identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that  has

been in place for the period ending 31s August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and  financial

statements.  This process is regularly reviewed by the Trust Board. 

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and  administrative

procedures, including the segregations of duties and a system of financial delegation and accountability,  contained

within the Trust's Finance and Procedures Manual.  In particular it includes:-

- Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems, with a cycle for annual budget setting and periodic

financial reports (included as an appendix to the Trust's Finance and Procedures Manual), which is

reviewed and agreed by the Trust Board;

- Regular meetings between the CEO, CFO and academy senior leaders to review financial performance

with any issues / recommendations being presented to governors / trustees; 

- Regular reviews by the Trust Board, its Resources Committee and academy Local Governing Boards of

financial reports which indicate financial performance against the budget forecasts in the current year and

over the medium term;

- Establishment of and regular reviews of, via the termly 'Academy Performance Review' (APR) Framework,

key performance indicators for academic performance of each setting conducted jointly by the CEO and

Trust Education Partner(s);

- Delegation of financial authority and appropriate segregation of duties;

- A comprehensive internal audit processes (including peer reviews) with regular monitoring of resultant

action plans at all levels of governance within the organisation;

- Identification of risks and risk management via maintenance of a risk register for each setting and the Trust

as a whole.

The trustees have introduced a programme of Internal Control (Internal Audit including Peer to Peer review), for  the

purpose of evaluating and managing the control framework, which is contained as an appendix in the Trust's  Finance

Policy and Procedures Manual. The CEO and CFO have an operational oversight of this process. Termly reports  along

with recommendations and action plans are considered periodically by the Trust and Executive Boards and by  each

academy's Local Governing Board. 

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal  control.

During the year in question the review has been informed by:-

- Termly reviews of, via the termly 'Academy Performance Review' (APR) Framework, key performance

indicators for academic performance of each academy conducted jointly by the CEO and Trust Education

Partner(s);

- Regular meetings between the CEO, CFO and academy Head Teachers and Business Managers to review

financial performance against the budget forecasts in the current year and over the medium term;

- The ongoing work of external and internal auditors;

- The financial compliance self-assessment and internal audit process cycle;

- The work of the CFO and Academy Business Managers Group, who have responsibility for the development,

maintenance and review of the internal control framework and financial systems: This group is also advised

by the Trust's external auditor. 

Page 23



The Societas Trust

Governance Statement

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

Review of Effectiveness

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the results of the CFO and Academy  Business

Managers' review of the system of internal control, and is assured that a plan to address weaknesses and  ensure

continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 5th December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

G Weir  - Trustee

J Lovatt - Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of The Societas Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board  of

trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and  non-compliance

with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding agreement in place  between

the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to  the

requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of  all

funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the  academy

trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to  date.

If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

J Lovatt - Accounting Officer

5th December 2019
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The trustees (who act as governors of The Societas Trust and are also the directors of the charitable company for  the

purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements  in

accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,  United

Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law  and

regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law  the

trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the  state

of affairs of the academy trust and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income  and

expenditure,  of the academy trust for that period.  In preparing those financial statements, the trustees are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018  to

2019;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the  academy

trust will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the  academy

trust's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the academy trust and  to

enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible  for

safeguarding the assets of the academy trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection  of

fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the academy trust applies financial and  other

controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are  also

responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on  the

charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination  of

financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 5th December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

G Weir  - Trustee
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of

The Societas Trust

 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Societas Trust (the 'academy trust') for the year ended 31st August  2019

which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to  the

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that  has

been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom  Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education and Skills  Funding

Agency (ESFA). 

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31st August 2019 and of its  incoming

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and Academies Accounts Direction 2018  to

2019.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable  law.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of  the

financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the  ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical  Standard,

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the  audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report  to

you where:

- the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is  not

appropriate; or

- the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may  cast

significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting  for

a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in  the

annual report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent  otherwise

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in  doing

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our  knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies  or

apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the  financial

statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we  conclude

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing  to

report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements  are

prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of  the

audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of

The Societas Trust

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to  you

if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received  from

branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of  the

charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements  and

for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is  necessary

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as  a

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis  of

accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no  realistic

alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free  from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes  our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in  accordance

with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or  error

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence  the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial  Reporting

Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of  the

Independent Auditors.  

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of  the

Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's members  those

matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted  by

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and the academy trust's  members

as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Timothy McNeal FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Hardings

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor

6 Marsh Parade

Newcastle-under-Lyme

Staffordshire

ST5 1DU

5th December 2019
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to

The Societas Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency 

 

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills  Funding

Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, we have carried out an engagement  to

obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Societas Trust during  the

period 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and  the

financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Societas Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement  letter.

Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Societas Trust and the ESFA those matters we are  required

to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or  assume

responsibility to anyone other than The Societas Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the  conclusion

we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Societas Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Societas Trust's funding agreement with  the

Secretary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1st September 2018, for  ensuring

that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the  financial

transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance  and

are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of  the

Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in  carrying

out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the  period

1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the  financial

transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the  ESFA.

We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information  and

explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and  consequently

does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified  in

a reasonable assurance engagement.  Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of  the

academy trust's income and expenditure.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the  expenditure

disbursed and income received during the period 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 has not been applied  to

purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Hardings

Chartered Accountants

6 Marsh Parade

Newcastle-under-Lyme

Staffordshire

ST5 1DU

5th December 2019
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The Societas Trust

Statement of Financial Activities

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

31/8/19 31/8/18

Restricted

Unrestricted fixed asset Restricted Total Total 

fund fund fund funds funds

Notes £ £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from

Donations and capital grants 2 - 292,294 56,927 349,221 86,065

Transfer from Local Authority

on conversion - - - - 19,742,382

Charitable activities

Funding for the academy's

educational operations 3 - - 9,030,507 9,030,507 8,226,635

Other trading activities 4 - - 634,562 634,562 532,008

Investment income 5 517 - - 517 443

Total 517 292,294 9,721,996 10,014,807 28,587,533

Expenditure on

Charitable activities

Academy's educational

operations - 647,532 10,131,857 10,779,389 9,497,111

Net income/(expenditure) 517 (355,238) (409,861) (764,582) 19,090,422

Transfers between funds 19 (21,201) 17,963 3,238 - -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains/losses on defined

benefit schemes - - (1,598,000) (1,598,000) 819,000

Net movement in funds (20,684) (337,275) (2,004,623) (2,362,582) 19,909,422

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 141,658 30,404,284 (3,966,773) 26,579,169 6,669,747

Total funds carried forward 120,974 30,067,009 (5,971,396) 24,216,587 26,579,169

The notes form part of these financial statements
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The Societas Trust (Registered number: 09987031)

Balance Sheet

At 31st August 2019

 

31/8/19 31/8/18

Restricted

Unrestricted fixed asset Restricted Total Total 

fund fund fund funds funds

Notes £ £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 13 - 30,057,872 - 30,057,872 30,404,284

Current assets

Debtors 14 - - 356,434 356,434 352,981

Cash at bank 120,974 67,112 385,673 573,759 606,505

120,974 67,112 742,107 930,193 959,486

Creditors

Amounts falling due within one

year 15 - (57,975) (824,862) (882,837) (872,998)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 120,974 9,137 (82,755) 47,356 86,488

Total assets less current

liabilities 120,974 30,067,009 (82,755) 30,105,228 30,490,772

Creditors

Amounts falling due after more

than one year 16 - - (289,641) (289,641) (358,603)

Pension liability 20 - - (5,599,000) (5,599,000) (3,553,000)

Net assets 120,974 30,067,009 (5,971,396) 24,216,587 26,579,169

Funds 19

Unrestricted funds 120,974 141,658

Restricted funds 24,095,613 26,437,511

Total funds 24,216,587 26,579,169

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 5th December 2019 and were signed on its  behalf

by:

G Weir -Trustee

The notes form part of these financial statements
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The Societas Trust

Cash Flow Statement

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

31/8/19 31/8/18

Notes £ £

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash generated from operations 23 (24,437) 501,106

Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities (24,437) 501,106

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (301,120) (130,956)

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA 292,294 54,606

Interest received 517 443

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (8,309) (75,907)

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the

reporting period (32,746) 425,199

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

reporting period 606,505 181,306

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

reporting period 573,759 606,505

The notes form part of these financial statements
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The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements 

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

1. Accounting policies

 

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have  been

prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities:  Statement

of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the  Financial

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January  2015)',

Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic  of

Ireland', the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and  the

Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The Societas Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any  material

uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company  to

continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year  from

the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust  has

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no  material

uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt  the

going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements. 

Income

All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the academy trust has entitlement to  the

funds, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of  income

received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the  balance

sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is  not

unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as  deferred

income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is  received,

the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it  is

receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts  of

capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are  recognised

when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. 

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement  of

Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related  conditions),

where it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where it  is

probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Other income

Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent  the

academy trust has provided the goods or services. 
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The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

1. Accounting policies - continued

 

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the  expected

costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and 'Income from  other

trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities'  and

the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value  the

items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are  sold.

This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'. 

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure  this

reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income  from

donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated  over

the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust‘s accounting policies. 

Expenditure

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing  the

academy trust to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required  in

settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on  an

accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where  costs

cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis  consistent

with the use of resources. 

Charitable activities

Costs of charitable activities are incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support  costs

and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities. 

Governance costs

These include the costs attributable to the academy trust’s compliance with constitutional and  statutory

requirements, including audit, strategic management and trustees’ meetings and reimbursed expenses. 
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The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

1. Accounting policies - continued

 

Tangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated  useful

life.

Leasehold land & buildings - over the expected useful economic life

Improvements to property - 2% on cost

Fixtures and fittings - 15% on reducing balance

Motor vehicles - 25% on reducing balance

Computer equipment - 33% on cost

Note that land, included within Leasehold land and buildings is not depreciated. The leasehold buildings  and

any associated improvements are depreciated in line with the expected remaining useful economic life as per  the

professional valuation carried out following conversion.

Assets costing £250 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of  depreciation

and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government  or

from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected  useful

economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of  Financial

Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.

Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial  Activities

so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the  academy

trust’s depreciation policy.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged  to

the unrestricted fund. 

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets  and

financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured  at

amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured  at

amortised cost as detailed in notes 16. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial  instruments

disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has  already

taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. 

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010  and

therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly,  the

academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within  categories

covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of  Chargeable

Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 
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The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

1. Accounting policies - continued

 

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the  charitable

objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed  by

funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by  the

funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other  factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting  estimates

and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions  that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within  the

next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number  of

factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used  in

determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these  assumptions,

which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a  roll

forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016  has

been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31st August 2019. Any differences between  the

figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the  carrying

amount of the pension liability. 

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme  (‘TPS’)

and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions  over

employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially  level

percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the  Government

Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in note 20,  the

TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit  accounting.

The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the  contributions

recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in  separate

trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on  an

actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate  of

return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial  valuations

are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to  operating

surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements  and

curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined  benefit

liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on  the

defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value  of

the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations.  The

difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets  is

recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 
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The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

2. Donations and capital grants

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Donations 56,927 31,459

Grants 292,294 54,606

349,221 86,065

Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Capital Grants from ESFA/LA 292,294 54,606

3. Funding for the academy's educational operations

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

DfE/ESFA revenue grant

General Annual Grant(GAG) - 7,013,212 7,013,212 6,471,266

Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 1,128,549 1,128,549 933,593

- 8,141,761 8,141,761 7,404,859

Other government grant

Local Government Grants - 888,746 888,746 821,776

- 9,030,507 9,030,507 8,226,635

4. Other trading activities

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Hire of facilities 19,163 19,798

Catering income 212,134 206,616

Educational visits 85,502 56,318

Staff insurance credits 78,374 46,422

Other income 239,389 202,854

634,562 532,008

Other income includes parental contributions for Nursery and Before and After School Clubs etc. 

5. Investment income

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Deposit account interest 517 443
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The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

6. Expenditure

31/8/19 31/8/18

Non-pay expenditure

Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total

£ £ £ £ £

Charitable activities

Academies educational

operations

Direct costs 6,182,814 - 468,403 6,651,217 6,179,679

Allocated support costs 1,453,579 1,568,004 1,106,589 4,128,172 3,317,432

7,636,393 1,568,004 1,574,992 10,779,389 9,497,111

Net resources are stated after charging/(crediting)

31/08/19 31/08/18

£ £

Auditor's remuneration (as auditor) 10,000 10,000

Auditor's remuneration (other) 13,000 13,000

Depreciation - leased assets 523,058 149,976

Depreciation - owned assets 124,474 107,363

7. Charitable activities - academy's educational operations

31/8/19 31/8/18

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

£ £ £ £

Direct costs - 6,651,217 6,651,217 6,179,679

Support costs - 4,128,172 4,128,172 3,317,432

- 10,779,389 10,779,389 9,497,111

31/8/19 31/8/18

Total Total

£ £

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs 1,453,579 1,148,710

Depreciation 647,532 257,339

Technology costs 70,726 70,078

Premises costs 899,377 765,419

Other support costs 388,331 381,480

Governance costs 668,627 694,406

Total support costs 4,128,172 3,317,432

Included in governance costs is the £448,000 (2018: £471,000) charge in respect of the LGPS  and

legal/professional fees in connection with the three new conversions in the year. 
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8. Trustees' remuneration and benefits

The CEO only receives remuneration in respect of services provided undertaking the role of CEO and not  in

respect of the role of Trustee.  The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

J Lovatt

Remuneration 65,000-70,000 65,000-70,000

Pension contributions paid 15,000-20,000 10,000-15,000

Trustees' expenses

There were no trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31st August 2019 nor for the year  ended

31st August 2018.

9. Staff costs

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Wages and salaries 5,944,830 5,327,127

Social security costs 480,572 448,185

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 1,129,969 982,406

7,555,371 6,757,718

Supply teacher costs 81,022 76,550

7,636,393 6,834,268

Included in the above staff costs is £2,000 relating to redundancy costs. 

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the academy trust during  the

year was as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

Teachers 82 100

Admin & Support 228 210

Management 10 13

320 323

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

31/8/19 31/8/18

£60,001 - £70,000 5 3

£70,001 - £80,000 2 1

7 4

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team  as

listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received  by

key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £526,705 (2018: £471,850). 
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10. Trustees' and officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to  protect

trustees/governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst  on

academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim. The cost of this insurance  is

included in the total insurance cost.

11. Comparatives for the statement of financial activities

Restricted

Unrestricted fixed asset Restricted Total 

fund fund fund funds

£ £ £ £

Income and endowments from

Donations and capital grants - 54,606 31,459 86,065

Transfer from Local Authority on conversion 146,384 22,619,532 (3,023,534) 19,742,382

Charitable activities

Funding for the academy's educational

operations - - 8,226,635 8,226,635

Other trading activities - - 532,008 532,008

Investment income 443 - - 443

Total 146,827 22,674,138 5,766,568 28,587,533

Expenditure on

Charitable activities

Academy's educational operations - 257,339 9,239,772 9,497,111

Net income/(expenditure) 146,827 22,416,799 (3,473,204) 19,090,422

Transfers between funds (25,192) 76,349 (51,157) -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit

schemes - - 819,000 819,000

Net movement in funds 121,635 22,493,148 (2,705,361) 19,909,422

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 20,023 7,911,136 (1,261,412) 6,669,747

Total funds carried forward 141,658 30,404,284 (3,966,773) 26,579,169
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12. Central services

The Academy Trust provided the following central services during the year:

- financial services

- legal services

- insurance services

- payroll services

- audit services

- information technology services

- educational support

- governor training

- professional development

- data protection officer services

- governance cost of the trust

The Trust charges for these services based on a top-slice of GAG of 3% or full recharge where costs relate to  a

specific Academy.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Ash Green Primary Academy 41,904 39,435

Ellison Primary Academy 42,000 35,684

Goldenhill Primary Academy 24,660 22,425

Gladstone Primary Academy 48,564 44,628

Summerbank Primary Academy 53,220 45,037

Total 210,348 187,209
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13. Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold

land & Improvements Fixtures and

buildings to property fittings

£ £ £

Cost

At 1st September 2018 30,060,000 53,111 349,884

Additions - 193,503 81,947

At 31st August 2019 30,060,000 246,614 431,831

Depreciation

At 1st September 2018 149,777 199 56,356

Charge for year 521,958 1,100 47,972

At 31st August 2019 671,735 1,299 104,328

Net book value

At 31st August 2019 29,388,265 245,315 327,503

At 31st August 2018 29,910,223 52,912 293,528

Motor Computer

vehicles equipment Totals

£ £ £

Cost

At 1st September 2018 11,226 208,995 30,683,216

Additions - 25,670 301,120

At 31st August 2019 11,226 234,665 30,984,336

Depreciation

At 1st September 2018 2,581 70,019 278,932

Charge for year 2,162 74,340 647,532

At 31st August 2019 4,743 144,359 926,464

Net book value

At 31st August 2019 6,483 90,306 30,057,872

At 31st August 2018 8,645 138,976 30,404,284

14. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Trade debtors 4,873 1,890

VAT 51,564 70,941

Prepayments and accrued income 299,997 280,150

356,434 352,981
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15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Trade creditors 222,300 312,617

Social security and other taxes 119,553 102,409

Other creditors 136,320 135,094

ESFA Creditor : Abatement of GAG 82,755 55,170

Accruals and deferred income 321,909 267,708

882,837 872,998

Deferred Income

£

Deferred income as at 1st September 2018 197,598

Resources deferred in the year 168,930

Amounts released from previous years (197,598)

Deferred income as at 31st August 2019 168,930

At the balance sheet date, the academy trust was holding funds received in advance from the ESFA in respect  of

the Universal Infant Free School Meals commencing in September 2019 along with rates relief for  2019/20.

Additionally, income for school trips taking place in the Autumn was held. 

16. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

ESFA Creditor : Abatement of GAG 289,641 358,603

See note 19 for additional explanation re the Abatement of GAG 

17. Leasing agreements

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Within one year 24,248 26,997

Between one and five years 33,671 44,173

57,919 71,170

18. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of  it

being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount  as

may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member. 
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19. Movement in funds

Net Transfers

movement in between

At 1/9/18 funds funds At 31/8/19

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted fund 141,658 517 (21,201) 120,974

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 38,139 (38,139) -

Deficit on conversion (Ash Green) (413,773) - 41,377 (372,396)

Pension deficit (3,553,000) (2,046,000) - (5,599,000)

Restricted fixed asset fund 30,404,284 (355,238) 17,963 30,067,009

26,437,511 (2,363,099) 21,201 24,095,613

TOTAL FUNDS 26,579,169 (2,362,582) - 24,216,587

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement in

resources expended losses funds

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted fund 517 - - 517

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 7,013,213 (6,975,074) - 38,139

Other DfE/ESFA grants 1,128,549 (1,128,549) - -

Local authority grants 888,746 (888,746) - -

Other 691,488 (691,488) - -

Pension deficit - (448,000) (1,598,000) (2,046,000)

Restricted fixed asset fund 292,294 (647,532) - (355,238)

10,014,290 (10,779,389) (1,598,000) (2,363,099)

TOTAL FUNDS 10,014,807 (10,779,389) (1,598,000) (2,362,582)
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19. Movement in funds - continued

 

Comparatives for movement in funds

Net Transfers

movement in between

At 1/9/17 funds funds At 31/8/18

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted Funds

Unrestricted fund 20,023 146,827 (25,192) 141,658

Restricted Funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 10,270 40,887 (51,157) -

Deficit on conversion (Ash Green) - (413,773) - (413,773)

Other DfE/ESFA grants 22,318 (22,318) - -

Pension deficit (1,294,000) (2,259,000) - (3,553,000)

Restricted fixed asset fund 7,911,136 22,416,799 76,349 30,404,284

6,649,724 19,762,595 25,192 26,437,511

TOTAL FUNDS 6,669,747 19,909,422 - 26,579,169

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement in

resources expended losses funds

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted fund 146,827 - - 146,827

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) 6,471,269 (6,430,382) - 40,887

Deficit on conversion (Ash Green) (413,773) - - (413,773)

Other DfE/ESFA grants 933,594 (955,912) - (22,318)

Local authority grants 821,775 (821,775) - -

Other 560,703 (560,703) - -

Pension deficit (2,607,000) (471,000) 819,000 (2,259,000)

Restricted fixed asset fund 22,674,138 (257,339) - 22,416,799

28,440,706 (9,497,111) 819,000 19,762,595

TOTAL FUNDS 28,587,533 (9,497,111) 819,000 19,909,422
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19. Movement in funds - continued

 

Purposes of unrestricted funds

Included in unrestricted funds includes the surplus on conversion from a local authority school, along with  other

income generated from the other small donations, etc. which carry no specific restrictions. These funds  are

available for the academy trust to use as deemed appropriate.

Purposes of restricted funds

The General Annual Grant represents the grant funding received from the ESFA in order to cover the  on-going

costs of the academy trust. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was  not

subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31st  August 2019.

Other DfE/ESFA grants received include amounts for Pupil Premium, UIFSM

Local Authority grants include nursery / early years funding as well as funding to support children with  special

education needs.

Purposes of restricted fixed assets funds

The restricted fixed assets funds reflects resources received by the academy trust to acquire assets for  continuing

use and furtherance of the trust's aims and objectives. Resources expended reflect the associated  depreciation

charges as set out on the accounting policies.

During the year, the Trust received monies from the Condition Improvement Fund to assist with the upgrade  of

the heating system at Ellison Primary Academy. The project will be completed in the 2019/20 academic  year.

The additional balance carried forward on the restricted fixed asset fund includes monies held to complete  this

project.

Page 46



The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

19. Movement in funds - continued

 

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31st August 2019 were allocated as follows:

31/08/19 31/08/18

£ £

Ash Green Primary Academy   (19,147)  20,650

Ellison Primary Academy 25,449 7,442

Gladstone Primary Academy (15,140) (23,460)

Goldenhill Primary Academy (27,013) (15,626)

Summerbank Primary Academy 156,825 152,652

Central - -

120,974 141,658

Ash Green Primary Academy deficit on conversion** (372,396) (413,773)

Restricted fixed assets funds 30,067,009 30,404,284

Pension reserve (5,599,000) (3,553,000)

Total 24,216,587 26,579,169

** Note that the Trust agreed to take on the historic deficit associated with Ash Green Primary School. A  loan

was agreed with the ESFA for the value of the deficit on conversion and is being repaid to the ESFA over a  five

year period by way of an abatement of GAG. The repayment plan commenced in 2019. A detailed recovery  plan

has been submitted to the ESFA to demonstrate the Trust's ability to repay the loan/deficit.

For academies where the balances position has worsened (i.e. Ash Green; Goldenhill), this relates to  unplanned

and unavoidable expenditure / loss of income in-year. Forecasts for Ash Green, Goldenhill and Gladstone show  a

return to surplus by the end of 2019/20; the financial performance of these academies is to be closely  monitored

by the Trust.

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the period was as follows:

Teaching and

educational Other costs

support staff Other support Educational (excluding)

costs staff costs supplies depreciation Total

£ £ £ £ £

Ash Green Primary Academy 1,237,594 316,183 14,799 417,018 1,985,594

Ellison Primary Academy 1,001,063 308,222 58,429 268,908 1,636,622

Gladstone Primary Academy 1,693,319 263,108 27,469 352,753 2,336,649

Goldenhill Primary Academy 717,807 205,098 16,107 293,583 1,232,595

Summerbank Primary Academy 1,533,030 233,503 36,300 490,117 2,292,950

Central Services - 127,466 - 71,981 199,446

FRS102 Charge - - - 448,000 448,000

6,182,813 1,453,580 153,104 2,342,360 10,131,857
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20. Pension and similar obligations

 

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme  England

and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)  for

non-teaching staff, which is managed by Staffordshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined  benefit

schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31st March 2012 and of the LGPS  31st

March 2016.

The balance due at 31st August 2019, to be paid over in respect of the August 2019 payroll was £136,319.  This

was paid in September 2019. (Balance due at 31st August 2018 : £122,530). 

Teachers' pension scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by  the

Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from  1st

January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of  contract,

although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis these contributions  along

with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid  by

public funds provided by Parliament. 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS  in

accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published  by

HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme  valuations

are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors.  The

latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the  Public

Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published  by

the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent  consultation

are:

- employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer

administration charge 

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions

together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional

past service deficit of £14,900 million

-  an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

- the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real

earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.48%, which was payable from September  2015.

The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the  employer

contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1st September 2019.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £526,000 (2018: £473,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has  accounted

for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above  the

information available on the scheme. 
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  - continued

 

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate  trustee-administered

funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31st August 2019 was £753,000 (2018: £640,000),  of

which employer’s contributions totalled £604,000 (2018: £509,000) and employees’ contributions  totalled

£149,000 (2018: £131,000) The agreed contribution rates for future years are 24.2% for employers and  the

contribution for employees is dependant upon salary banding.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event  of

academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department  for

Education. The guarantee came into force on 18th July 2013. 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Present value of funded obligations (10,249,000) (7,207,000)

Fair value of plan assets 4,650,000 3,654,000

(5,599,000) (3,553,000)

Deficit (5,599,000) (3,553,000)

Liability (5,599,000) (3,553,000)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Current service cost 888,000 881,000

Net interest from net defined benefit asset/liability 215,000 175,000

Past service cost 61,000 -

1,164,000 1,056,000

Actual return on plan assets 141,000 135,000

Page 49



The Societas Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

 

20. Pension and similar obligations

  - continued

 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Defined benefit obligation 7,207,000 2,058,000

Current service cost 888,000 881,000

Past service cost 61,000 -

Contributions by scheme participants 149,000 131,000

Interest cost 215,000 175,000

Benefits paid (10,000) (7,000)

Business combinations - 4,653,000

Remeasurements:

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions (582,000) -

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in financial assumptions 2,321,000 (684,000)

10,249,000 7,207,000

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Fair value of scheme assets 3,654,000 764,000

Contributions by employer 604,000 509,000

Contributions by scheme participants 149,000 131,000

Interest income on plan assets 112,000 76,000

Benefits paid (10,000) (7,000)

Business combinations - 2,046,000

Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) 141,000 135,000

4,650,000 3,654,000

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions 582,000 -

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in financial assumptions (2,321,000) 684,000

Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) 141,000 135,000

(1,598,000) 819,000
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  - continued

 

The major categories of scheme assets as amounts of total scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Equities 3,162,000 2,558,000

Bonds 1,023,000 694,000

Property 372,000 292,000

Cash 93,000 110,000

4,650,000 3,654,000

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages)

31/8/19 31/8/18

Discount rate 1.9% 2.8%

Future salary increases 2.7% 2.7%

Future pension increases 2.3% 2.3%

Inflation assumption CPI 2.3% 2.5%

Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% 50%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.  The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31/8/19 At 31/8/18

Retiring today

Males 21.1 22.1

Females 23.5 24.4

Retiring in 20 years

Males 22.2 24.1

Females 24.8 26.4

Sensitivity Analysis

Approx monetary amount

Change in assumption as at : 31/08/19 31/08/18

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate £1,486,000 £994,000

0.5% increase in Salary Increase Rate £239,000 £188,000

0.5% increase in Pension Increase Rate £1,216,000 £792,000
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21. Capital commitments

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements 62,000 -

22. Related party disclosures

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from  local

public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees  have

an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements  of

the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1st April 2019 and obtaining  their

approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations and normal procurement  procedures

relating to connected and related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place during the year. 

23. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement

of financial activities) (764,582) 19,090,422

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 647,532 257,339

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA (292,294) (54,606)

Transfer from Local Authority on conversion - (19,742,382)

Interest received (517) (443)

Cash transferred on conversion - 146,384

Budget deficit on conversion - (416,534)

Increase in debtors (3,453) (234,576)

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (59,123) 984,502

Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 448,000 471,000

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (24,437) 501,106
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